ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 31, 2011
8:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Kevin Meyer, Co-Chair
Senat or Joe Thomas, Co-Chair
Senator Bettye Davis, Vice Chair
Senator Gary Stevens

MEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Hollis French
OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Cathy G essel
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO. 3
"An Act providing for funding for school |unch and breakfast."

- MOVED CSSB 3(EDC) OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 1
“"An Act requiring the state Board of Education and Early
Devel opnent to provide an annual report to the legislature.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: SB 3

SHORT TI TLE: FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS

SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) W ELECHOWSKI, ELLIS, DAVIS, EGAN, FRENCH,
KOOKESH, MCGUI RE, MENARD, PASKVAN, THOVAS

01/ 19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/7/11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

01/ 28/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)
01/ 28/ 11 (S) Heard & Hel d

01/ 28/ 11 (S) M NUTE( EDC)

01/ 31/ 11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 (TSBI dg)

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -1- January 31, 2011



BILL: SB 1
SHORT TI TLE: BD OF ED./EARLY DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) DAVI S

01/19/ 11 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 11

01/ 19/ 11 (S) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/19/ 11 (S) EDC, FIN

01/31/11 (S) EDC AT 8:00 AM BELTZ 105 ( TSBI dg)

W TNESS REG STER

CHRI STY HARVEY, Staff

Senator Bill W el echowski

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on SB 3 on behalf of the
sponsor.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

Di vi sion of School Finance

Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to the fiscal
note for SB 3.

LES MORSE, Acting Conm ssioner

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opment ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to DEED s neutral
position on SB 3. Commented on SB 1 and offered an alternative
sol uti on.

TOM OBERMEYER, St af f

Senator Bettye Davis

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Read the sponsor statenment for SB 1 on
behal f of the sponsor.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Lobbyi st

Nat i onal Education Associ ation of Al aska (NEA-Al aska)
Anchor age, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in supported of SB 1.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 2- January 31, 2011



8:02: 39 AM

COCHAIR KEVIN MEYER called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Stevens, Davis, Co-Chair Thonmas, and Co-
Chair Meyer.

SB  3- FUNDI NG FOR SCHOOL MEALS

8:03: 24 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER announced the consideration of SB 3. He rem nded
commttee nenbers that [CSSB 3( ), version B was before the
comittee.]

8:04:59 AM
CHRI STY HARVEY, Staff to Senator Bill Welechowski, sponsor of
SB 3, said this is an inportant bill and a great investnent both

for the short and long term effects for Al aska and Al aska
st udent s.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked what the federal match currently is.

M5. HARVEY answered that currently there is a federal match of
about $32 million and the school outlay is about $58 mllion.
The remainder of that is partially nmade up by students who pay
for their neals. There is only about a $2.1 mllion shortfall
that the schools take out of their operating budgets, she
expl ai ned.

CO CHAI R MEYER asked if there are any concerns about the federa
mat ch goi ng away.

M5. HARVEY answered no; not in the recent past. She explained
that this program usually seens to always have a fairly solid
federal base.

At ease from8:07 a.m to 8:09 a.m

8:09: 35 AM

CO-CHAIR MEYER asked Ms. Harvey if she could explain the
di fference between the original bill and version B

M5. HARVEY answered that the original bill states that the

department woul d provide a base ampunt of 15 cents for lunch or
35 cents for breakfast. This |anguage, she explained, inplied
that a school did not have to do both. However, there was
concerned that this could be challenged or confused by sone of
the different school departnents. For this reason the |anguage

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 31, 2011



was changed from "or" to "and" in the CS [page 1, line 8]. This
makes it clearer that schools can apply for both a lunch and
br eakf ast program

CO- CHAI R THOVAS asked for confirmation that this is version B
M5. HARVEY replied yes.
At ease from8:11 a.m to 8:14 a.m

8:14: 22 AM
CO- CHAIR MEYER clarified with Ms. Harvey that the conmittee is
working with CSSB 3( ), version B

M5. HARVEY replied yes. She reiterated that it was inportant for
schools to know that both funds could be received. For this
reason the current commttee substitute reads: "15 cents for
lunch and 35 cents for breakfast”™ [page 1, line 8]. Wereas
version Mreads: "15 cents for lunch or 35 cents for breakfast".

CO- CHAIR THOVAS asked if that was the way the fiscal note was
pr epar ed.

M5. HARVEY answer ed yes.

8:15: 46 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said that he understands sonme parents nay not
have the financial stability to feed their children before
school and that the state nust step in to take on that
responsibility. The problem however, wth regard to the success
of K-12 education in Alaska, is that many students arrive at
college unready to conpete. He asked when breakfast is being
served and if it is affecting the educational day.

M5. HARVEY answered that it is her understanding that breakfast
is served before the school day begins. She added that she
believes this programis an enhancenent to the education process
and not a distraction.

SENATOR STEVENS asked who supports this bill.

M5. HARVEY answered that all of the school boards, nurses, and
teachers that she has spoken to are in support of SB 3.

SENATOR STEVENS asked what Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent's (DEED) stance is.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -4- January 31, 2011



M5. HARVEY replied that the departnent has taken a neutral
stance on the bill.

SENATOR STEVENS sai d he thinks DEED needs to comrent. He said he
wants to know why the departnment is not taking a position on
this bill.

COCHAIR THOVAS agreed. He said that if this is such an
i nportant issue, as people have been indicating, it seens the
departnment would take that position. DEED should at |east give
an explanation as to why it has taken a neutral stance.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said that the state currently has a good federa
match if the state contributes the amount laid out in SB 3. His
explained that his concern is if that federal match is taken
away then the duty falls on the state.

8:20: 25 AM
SENATOR STEVENS asked why DEED is unwilling to take a stance on
the bill.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director, Division of School Fi nance,
Department of Education and Early Devel opnment (DEED), answered
that DEED does not have a position on the bill and are here for
t echni cal assi stance.

SENATOR STEVENS said this causes him concern and seens to inply
that if DEED is not supporting the bill then it is opposed to
it.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that she does not want the commttee to
pi ck between the two stances for the departnent's position. She
reiterated that DEED can provide technical assistance and answer
any questions but the departnent does not have a position on the
bill.

SENATOR STEVENS said that he wunderstands that DEED currently

does not have a comm ssioner; however, in order to deal wth
many of these issues one is needed. He continued that it seens
unacceptable that DEED is unwilling to testify for or against a
bill that affects education so nuch

M5. NUDELMAN replied that the departnent's conm ssioner will be
on staff this week and she hopes he will be able to speak with
the commttee soon. She repeated that she can only give
techni cal assistance on the bill.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 5- January 31, 2011



SENATOR STEVENS suggested that, if this is the case, the
commttee should hold any issues on education until there is a
conmmi ssioner who is ready to speak on the issues that need to be
addr essed.

SENATOR DAVIS asked what kind of technical assistance M.
Nudel man coul d provide to the commttee.

M5. NUDELMAN answered that DEED prepared the fiscal note for SB
3 and she would be happy to go through it if the committee is
i nt erested.

SENATOR DAVI S replied that this was not necessary. She suggested
that the acting conmm ssioner testify before the conmttee.

CO- CHAI R MEYER agreed. He suggested that the acting conm ssioner
speak to the policy side of the bill.

8:25:48 AM
LES MORSE, Acting Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnment (DEED), said he can only add that this bill is

not in the governor's budget and is a policy decision left in
the hands of the legislature. He stressed that the argunent is
not about whether food and nutrition is inportant or not, the
departnment is only staying neutral to how the nmeans of that food
is provided.

8:27:39 AM

CO- CHAIR THOVAS nmoved to report CSSB 3( ), version B from the
commttee with individual recomendations and attached fiscal
note(s). There being no objection, CSSB 3(EDC) noved from the
Senat e Education Standing Commttee.

At ease from8:28 a.m to 8:29 a.m

SB 1- BD OF ED./EARLY DEVELOPMENT ANNUAL REPORT

8:29: 03 AM
CO- CHAI R MEYER announced t he consi deration of SB 1.

8:29:26 AM

SENATOR DAVI S, sponsor of SB 1, said this piece of |egislation
is inportant because it gives the legislature an opportunity to
neet with the Board of Education at the beginning of every
sessi on.

8:30:11 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 31, 2011



TOM OBERMEYER, staff to Senator Davis, sponsor of SB 1, read the
fol |l ow ng sponsor statenent:

This bill requires that the Alaska State Board of
Education shall prepare and present to the State
Legislature not later than the 30th day of each
regul ar session an annual report that describes
the efforts of the board to develop, maintain,
and continuously inprove a conprehensive quality
public education system as provided for under the
byl aws of the Board.
The report to the Legislature nust include:
1. a sumary of resolves and rationales
provi ded in support of policy decisions;
2. program and curriculum changes made,
di scussed, or reconmmended in neetings; and
3. additional information relevant to efforts
made to inprove and mmintain the public
education system

This bill is ‘intended to «create a greater
di al ogue anong Al aska | egislators, the Departnent
of Education and Early Devel opnent (DEED), and
the Board of Education which neets at |east
quarterly. Since Al aska |egislators appropriate
over $1 Dbillion per year for state public
education which is a significant portion of the
state budget, they nust be at the center of the
state's efforts to identify strengths and
weaknesses of the current system help determne
a public agenda, set clear goals for K-12 and

hi gher educat i on, and hol d institutions
accountable for performance. The only way to
achi eve this IS t hr ough cooperation and

comuni cation with the Board and the Departnent.

Legislators take great pride and trenmendous
anounts of time and effort every session in
trying to provide the best possible education,
schol arships, and funding for Al aska students.
The annual report required by this bill wll
assist both DEED and legislators early in each
session in assessing new programs, curriculum
changes, goals and priorities which may require
nor e i nformation or adm ni strative and
| egi sl ative action during session.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -7- January 31, 2011



8:32:19 AM
CO- CHAIR MEYER asked whether the Board of Education already
presents to the | egislature.

SENATOR DAVI S answered no. The University of Al aska (UA) Board
of Regents has annual reports, but the Board of Education does
not .

CO CHAI R MEYER asked for confirmation that SB 1 asks for both an
annual report and a presentation.

SENATOR DAVI S replied yes.

SENATOR STEVENS said he thinks this is a good idea and would be
much better than what currently occurs.

CO CHAI R MEYER agreed. He said that Esther Cox, the president of
t he board, has been very cooperative in the past. However, this
bill would formalize the process.

8:34: 01 AM

JOHN ALCANTRA, Lobbyist, National Education Association of
Al aska (NEA- Al aska), testified in support SB 1. He said that in
the nine years he has worked with NEA-Al aska, the board has
al ways been very forthcomng in answering questions and getting
the organization information. However, SB 1 wll assist in
maki ng sure that there is nore know edge of what is happening on
the state board | evel.

8:36:11 AM

LES MORSE, Acting Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opment (DEED), said the board has a strong interest
in connecting and comunicating wth the |egislature. He
mentioned that the current board chair has requested a joint
neeting with the House and Senate Education Committees in March.
He said that he is always concerned about adding reports and
would I|ike to offer an alternative for the commttee's
consi der ati on.

He explained that the board's actions and its rationales are
always laid out in their m nut es. Comuni cation could
i mredi ately be inproved by including either the co-chairs or the
entire conmittee on the board's electronic distribution list of
its mnutes. The information needed for an annual report would
be lifted directly fromthese m nutes.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 31, 2011



He continued that the board neets four times annually, including
a March neeting held intentionally in Juneau so that it has an
opportunity to interact with the legislature. DEED wll also do
everything it can to support the board in interacting with the
| egislature in that way. He reiterated that the board would al so
include the commttee on their distribution list for their four
live neetings and two audi o neeti ngs.

8:39:12 AM

SENATOR DAVI S said that what the departnment is offering already
occurs and March is too late to expect to have a neeting wth
the conmttee, especially with a 90-day session. She said that
she wants sonething that is concrete and will be laid out at the
begi nning of the legislative session rather than at the end. She
expl ained that she has seen the board's mnutes and attended
their neetings; however, not all of the comittee nenbers
necessarily receive them The guidelines and regul ations for the
report, it seens, would be deternmined by DEED, as long as it is
conpl eted by the deadline. She explained that the commttee does
not need to know everything that takes place, but inportant
changes and reconmmendati ons shoul d be included in a report.

ACTI NG COW SSI ONER MORSE replied that all of the actions that
she is asking for are contained in those mnutes. If the board
had a report it would sinply be a restatenent of these m nutes.
The alternative, he explained, would allow the comrttee to
receive the board's mnutes immediately, rather than waiting
until the session begins.

SENATOR DAVI S said she is interested in nore than just a witten
report, but also in an oral dialogue. That way, she expl ai ned,
the board can share concerns that it mght have and woul d ensure
that oral dialogue would continue in the future.

8:43: 42 AM

CO CHAIR THOVAS said he wants a general consensus from the board
on issues that the legislature should be |ooking at in order to
i mprove education, not mnutes from neetings.

He expl ained that the comrittee receives a |ot of comments about
education in Alaska not inproving at a very rapid rate or at
all. The report could be used alnost |like a consultant report,
whi ch suggests areas that need to be inproved or changed. He
explained that he is not an expert in education and does not
want to guess at what needs to be done. Rather, he would Iike
the experts in education to bring things for the conmttee's
consi der ati on.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 9- January 31, 2011



SENATOR STEVENS commended Senator Davis on her bill and that it
conpares to the bill the commttee passed with the University of
Al aska (UA) Board of Regents. He explained that at the tine the
conmmttee was only hearing from the president of the university
and it was felt that the commttee should hear fromthe Board of
Regents as well. For this reason the legislature established a
requi renent that the Board of Regents submt an annual report on
teacher preparation. He added that this report and face-to-face
time has been extrenely val uabl e.

He asked if the commttee could include something in the bill
that would also allow the legislature to neet with the Board of
Education. He <continued that SB 1 wll establish better
comuni cation, which is lacking right now.

CO- CHAIR MEYER agreed. He pointed out that the current board

president, Esther Cox, has been very accessible and has
communi cated well. But, he said, that is not to say that the
next president wll be as accessible and as free wth

comuni cat i on. He suggested that the comittee draft an
amendnent that would deal with Senator Steven's comments.

SENATOR DAVIS said that would be fine. She continued that she
appreci ates the work of Esther Cox but gave an exanple as to why
nore face to face time could be helpful. She explained that a
few years ago a letter was sent by the Board of Education to the
comm ssioner of DEED which stated that it needed to |ook at
changi ng or renoving the H gh School G aduation Qualifying Exam
This letter, she explained, sat for two or three years. Wen

|ater, she drafted a bill that would elimnate the exam she
asked the board if it was aware of this letter. Ms. Cox, who was
president of the board at the tine, was not aware of it. She
enphasi zed that these are the types of things that can get |ost.

8:49:49 AM
CO CHAI R MEYER cl osed public testinony.

8:50: 25 AM

SENATOR STEVENS asked if Senator Davis could review the piece of
| egislation that was created for the UA Board of Regents. He
said that this mght help in drafting the anmendnent.

SENATOR DAVI S replied yes.

CO- CHAIR MEYER said that if the change to SB 1 is going to be
smal |, only an amendnent is needed.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -10- January 31, 2011



SENATOR DAVI S concurred.

8:50: 48 AM
CO-CHAIR MEYER held SB 1 in comittee.

CO- CHAIR MEYER rem nded the committee that the School Board Fly-
In would be held that afternoon and encouraged the committee to
at t end.

8:52:26 AM

There being no further business to cone before the commttee,
Co- Chair Meyer adjourned the neeting at 8:52 a.m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 31, 2011



